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Name of Property

historic name Sandy Historic District

other name/site number

2. Location

street name roughly bounded by State Street, 9000 South, 700 East & Pioneer Avenue [ ] not for publication
city or town Sandy ] vicinity

state _ Utah code _ UT county Salt Lake  code_035 zip code 84070

3. State/Federal Agency Certification.

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this X nomination
[ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register
of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the
property X} meets [J does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant
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State or Federal agency and bureau

in my opinion, the property [ ] meets [] does not meet the National Register criteria. ([J See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)

Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau
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Date of Action
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O determined eligible for the {

National Register
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Sandy Historic District Sandy, Salt Lake County, Utah

Name of Property City, County and State

Ownershlp of Property Cafégory of Property " Number of Resources within Property

(check as many boxes as apply) (check only one box) (Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)
Contributing Noncontributing
X private ] building(s) 266 223 buildings
[ public-local district sites
[ public-State [ site structures
(] public-Federal (] structure objects
[ object 266 223 Total
Name of related multipie property listing Number of contributing resources previously listed
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.) in the National Register
Historic Resources of Sandy City 51
Historic Function . "~ Current Function
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC / single dwelling DOMESTIC / single dwelling
DOMESTIC / hotel / motel DOMESTIC / hotel / motel
COMMERCE/TRADE / Specialty store, financial institution COMMERCE/TRADE / Specialty store, financial institution
RELIGION / religious facility RELIGION / religious facility
EDUCATION / school EDUCATION / school
RECREATION AND CULTURE / auditorium RECREATION AND CULTURE / auditorium
LANDSCAPE / park / city park LANDSCAPE / park / city park
TRANSPORTATION / rail related / streetcar depot TRANSPORTATION / rail related / streetcar depot

e Descﬂptlon S R N T LA E IR Str
Architectural CIassnflcatlon Materials

(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
LATE VICTORIAN / Victorian Eclectic foundation ___ CONCRETE, STONE/sandstone
LATE 19™ AND 20™ CENTURY REVIVALS / Colonial Revival walls BRICK, STUCCO, WOOD, STONE,
LATE 19™ AND 20™ CENTURY AMERICAN MOVEMENTS: METAL, SYNTHETICS, CONCRETE
Bungalow/Craftsman, Prairie School, Commercial Style roof ASPHALT
MODERN MOVEMENT / Moderne / Art Moderne other

Narrative Description
(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

Xsee continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 7



Sandy Historic District
Name of Property

8. ‘Description’

Applicable National Reglster Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

X A Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

[0 B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

X € Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and

distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

[ D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

[J A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

[ B removed from its original location.

(] C a birthplace or grave.

[ D a cemetery.

[ E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
O F a commemorative property.

[ G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References ' = -
Bibliography

Sandy, Salt Lake County, Utah
City, County and State

' ‘Aﬁrééév 6f S\igrnificv:én“(j:ﬂé'

(enter categories from instructions)

ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

COMMERCE

Period of Significance
c. 1875 -1957

Significant Dates
c. 1875, 1907

Significant Persons
(Compilete if Criterion B is marked above)
N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
various

. [XISee continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 8

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

[ preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested

[] previously listed in the National Register

[ previously determined eligible by the National
Register

[] designated a National Historic Landmark

[ recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

#

(O recorded by Historic American Engineering

Record #

Primary location of additional data:

X state Historic Preservation Office
] Other State agency

(] Federal agency

[ Local government

] University

(] Other Name of repository:

XISee continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 9



Sandy Historic District Sandy, Salt Lake County, Utah
Name of Property City, County and State

10. Geographical bata

Acreage of Property 266.24 acre(s)

UTM References
(Place additional boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

A1/2  4/2/4/5/6/0 4/4/9/4/4/0/0 B 1/2 4/2/6/2/4/0 4/4/9/4/1/8/0
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

C1/2 4/2/6/2/1/0 4/4/9/3/0/8/0 D 1/2 4/2/4/5/4/0 4/4/9/3/3/2/0
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property.)

The boundary runs along the east side of State Street on the west, along both sides of Pioneer Avenue (8530 South) on
the north, the north side of 9000 South on the south and 280 East to the east. To the east of 280 East, the district covers
buildings on either side of the older streets of 8680 South, 8800 South and Locust Street between 280 East and 700 East.
See attached map for exact coverage.

Property Tax No. various

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected.)

The eastern and southern boundaries, State Street and 9000 South were chosen because they are major collectors and
divide the historic residential and commercial area from more recent developments.The boundaries of the district have
been drawn to encompass the highest concentration of historic buildings in Sandy.

DS&‘G continuation sheef(s) for Section No. 10

11, Form Prepared By = -

namefiitte  Beatrice Lufkin

organization date _ November 30, 2006
street & number__ 1460 Harrison Avenue telephone__ 801-583-8249

city or town _Salt Lake City state_ UT  zip code 84105

Additional Documentation’ " -
Submit the following items with the completed form

Continuation Sheets
Maps A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs: Representative black and white photographs of the property.
Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner - R T e

nameltitle district nomlnatlon multlple owners

street & number telephone

city or town Sandy state UT  zip code 84070

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.



OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section No. 7 Page 1 Sandy Historic District, Sandy, Salt Lake County, UT

Narrative Description
Site

The Sandy Historic District is located in the northeast section of Sandy, twelve miles south of Salt Lake City.
The original square mile of the historic city is contained within its boundaries. The Salt Lake valley lies
between the Oquirth Mountains on the west and the Wasatch Mountains to the east. The entrances of Big and
Little Cottonwood canyons with their historic mining areas are directly to the east of Sandy and those of
Bingham Canyon across the valley to the west. The UTA! Salt Lake valley light rail system, TRAX, runs along
a previously underutilized railway corridor on a slight diagonal through the Sandy Historic District, and the
“Historic Sandy” (9000 South) TRAX station is found in the district. The station itself is not historic but
named after the oldest section of the city, the area of the Sandy Historic District (Photo #1).

In a similar pattern to other towns in Utah, the majority of streets in the historic district are laid out in an
orthogonal grid. Sandy streets are narrower, however, and the blocks are smaller than the ten-acre blocks in
Salt Lake City to the north. The street numbering in Sandy originally began at the commercial intersection of
Main and Center Streets.> There are four parks in the district: Main Street, Bicentennial, Center Street, and
Sandy Station Park. The historic district runs along the east side of State Street on the west, along both sides of
Pioneer Avenue (8530 South) on the north, from the north side of 9000 South on the south and 280 East to the
east. To the east of 280 East, the district covers buildings on either side of the older streets of 8680 South, 8800
South and Locust Street between 280 East and 700 East.” The boundaries of the district have been drawn to
encompass the highest concentration of historic buildings in Sandy.

The district is composed of residential, commercial, and institutional buildings from two primary construction
phases based on the Sandy City multiple property submissions: ‘“The Mining, Smelting and Small Farm Era
¢.1871-1910” context and the “Agriculture, Small Business and Community Development 1906-1946” context.
(The historic district contexts established in this nomination vary only slightly from the MPS contexts.) There
are five hundred forty (540)* primary buildings and one hundred seventy (170) outbuildings in the district.
Single family houses constitute ninety-two (92) percent of the structures with eleven (11) or four (4) percent
multi-family residential buildings. The majority of the buildings in the historic district, two-hundred sixty six
(266: 317 less 51 previously listed buildings), or 54%, and one hundred thirty-five (135) of the outbuildings

' Utah Transit Authority.

% In 1986 the city of Sandy realigned its street numbering to originate at the Salt Lake LDS (Church of Jesus Christ of
Latter-day Saints or Mormon) temple, in accordance with the majority of towns in the valley. For example, historic First
North is now 8680 South and historic First West is 120 East.

% See attached map for exact coverage.

4 Statistical data for this nomination came from data compiled by the Utah SHPO from the Reconnaissance Level Survey
of the same area that was conducted by the author in Sandy in 2002. The historic district area is a subset of the total
area surveyed, omitting several areas of new subdivisions. Note that other than the status and year built categories, the
statistics cited below in the statistical summary deal only with the contributing buildings in the proposed district.
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contribute to the historic character of the district. Out-of-period and altered structures are scattered throughout
the area but overall the district retains its historic feeling and association.

Survey Methods and Eligibility Requirements

Buildings were classified as either contributing or non-contributing based on the evaluations given in the
reconnaissance level survey of the area in 2002. Each building was evaluated for eligibility using guidelines set
by the Utah State Historic Preservation Office.

A’ - Contributing - Eligible/significant: built within the historic period and retains integrity; excellent
example of a style or type; unaltered or only minor alterations or additions; individually eligible for National
Register under criterion “C”; also, buildings of known historical significance.

B - Contributing - Eligible: built within the historic period and retains integrity; good example of a style
or type, but not as well-preserved or well-executed as “A” buildings, though overall integrity is retained;
eligible for National Register as part of a potential historic district or primarily for historical, rather than
architectural, reasons. The additions do not detract and may be reversible.

C - Noncontributing/ Altered -: built during the historic period but has had major alterations or
additions; no longer retains integrity.

D - Noncontributing/Out-of-period: constructed outside the historic period.®

Evaluations were based on age and architectural integrity. A building may sometimes appear newer than its
actual construction date because of intrusive alterations and additions. Surveyors attempt to discern the oldest
portion of the building by looking for signs of greater age such as composition, massing, fenestration,
toundation materials, chimneys and landscaping.

Architectural Styles and Types by Period

The architectural styles and types spread across periods and examples may combine elements of styles from
several periods. A typical streetscape looking west on Main Street shows the combination of architectural
styles and types in the district (Photo #2). Other streetscapes show the wide streets, mature trees, sidewalks,
curbs, and gutters (Photos #3, 4 and 5).

Boom Town: Mining and Smelting: c. 1875-1906
The oldest known extant buildings in the district date from this era. Classical styles are found in the earliest

Utah buildings from 1847 through 1890 and later. There are fourteen (14) buildings with elements of Classical
styling identified in the historic district. Their forms tend to be gabled with rectangular, symmetrical facades

% Buildings are shown on the attached map as Contributing, Noncontributing/Altered or Noncontributing/Out-of-period.
® Reconnaissance Level Surveys, Standard Operating Procedures. Utah State Historic Preservation Office, Rev.
September 2005, 8.
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and smooth wall surfaces. House types associated with Classical styles are hall-parlors, cross wings and other
relatively plain forms. The Olsen/Maynard House, a simple brick c. 1905 hall-parlor located at 8889 South 90
East’ (Photo #6), combines the hall-parlor form and Classical symmetry with Victorian Eclectic segmental
arched window and door openings. The oldest extant house in the district, the Samuel and Eliza Jenkins House
is a frame drop-sided c. 1875 cross wing with several historic era additions and a hipped roofed-porch c. 1898 at
8658 South 120 East (Photo # 7). A simple frame drop-sided house with the heavy cornices associated with
Classical styling in the central section has additions on either side at 8814 S. 400 East (Photo # 8).

Victorian eclectic styles were popular in Utah from 1885 to 1910 and sixty-one (61) of the buildings in the
historic district use the then fashionable Victorian styles. Victorian Eclectic is the term used to describe a style
that combines elements of related styles of the era such as Queen Anne, Italianate, Greek Revival and Colonial
Revival. They are characterized by asymmetrical facades, irregular massing, segmental arched window
openings and patterned wooden shingles on the gable ends. The forms or types of the houses from this era
found in the historic district are cross wings, central-block-with-projecting-bays, and central passage types. A
vernacular drop-sided house in a simple rectangular shape with the narrow end to the street built c. 1903 has a
roof that is gabled on one end and hipped on the other is found at 8879? S. 90 East (Photo # 9). A modest
single-story central-block-with-projecting-bay brick house has a hipped porch supported by Doric wooden
columns at 316 E. 8800 South (Photo # 10). The front-facing gable with pent roof is imitated in the eastern
addition to a stucco-clad central-block-with-projecting-bay type Victorian Eclectic, the Louis and Florence Van
Dam house, at 407 E. 8800 South (NR 12/9/1999) (Photo # 11).® Decorative wooden shingles in the front-
facing gable end of the central-block-with-projecting-bay type single story brick house show Victorian Eclectic
style elements along with the Doric columns supporting the gabled porch at 387 E. 8800 South (Photo # 12).

Some yards contain coops, barns or other buildings related to agricultural activities. Many of the outbuildings
are not maintained and some are seriously dilapidated. A wooden shed-roofed coop now used for storage can
be seen at the southeast corner of 8680 South and 250 East (Photo # 13).

The district includes the historic commercial center of Sandy along Main Street (8720 South) and Center Street
(150 East). There are a number of false-fronted one-part-block brick and frame commercial buildings in the
ecarly twentieth century commercial or Victorian Eclectic styles. The Jensen and Kuhre Lumber and Hardware
building on 179 E. Main Street (8720 South) is a frame one-part-block built in 1895. Its gable roof is concealed
by the false front with elaborate cornice (Photo #14). Max Polner Dry Goods (13 E. Main Street) is a Victorian
Eclectic brick one-part-block built in 1905.

Other non-residential buildings from this era are the two-story Sandy Coop Mercantile and Manufacturing
Company Block (NR 8/28/92) built ot brick in 1889 on 8744 S. 150 East. It has a brick dentil corbelled cornice

” Addresses in the Sandy Historic District are complex and confusing. A building may be identified by several addresses;
the historic one, the current one, and occasionally one for each fagade on corner buildings. Addresses used here are
those most recently found on the buildings or extrapolated from surrounding buildings and noted with a “?” following.

8 Buildings that have been individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places mentioned in the text will have a
NR following their names and then the listing date.
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with a central door flanked by tall double-hung windows and three corresponding windows on the second story
fagade. The first floor was used for various retail operations while the second floor was traditionally used as a
social hall. The building now houses a local history museum (Photo # 15). The brick LDS Tithing Office (NR
1/25/1985) was a standard plan developed by the LDS church centrally in Salt Lake City and built in Mormon
towns throughout Utah. The Sandy example was constructed in 1906 at 8844 S. 280 East (Photo #16) and is
now used as a residence.

Small Town: Agriculture and Local Businesses: 1907- 1957

Many small businesses built structures in this period. The Sandy City Bank (NR 7/9/1997) at 212 E Main Street
(8720 South) constructed its brick single story Second Renaissance Revival corner building in 1907. The brick
stucco-covered one-part block, historically known as Anderson’s Meat Market, at 115 E. Main Street (8720
South) has an angled recessed corner entrance, large display windows on both facades, and a stepped parapet
(Photo #17). The Sandy Post Office at the corner of Main and Center Streets (123-9 E. Main Street) Is a brick
one-part block with sign panels, a stepped parapet roof visible on the sides and large plate glass display
windows (Photo #18). ’

An interesting example of a foursquare or Box house is the William D. Kuhre House (NR 7/6/1987) at 8586
South 150 East. It was built in 1890 as a brick Victorian farmhouse and remodeled in 1910 with the then
fashionable Prairie School style elements like a full-width front porch, stucco added to the second-story walls,
and a hipped roof with wide eaves and exposed, decorative rafter tails. A simple single-story foursquare,

wrapped in vinyl siding, can be seen at 8888 S. 280 East (Photo #19).

Bungalows were the most popular house form in Utah in the first quarter of the twentieth century, and Sandy
reflects the styling trends in the state with fifty-five (55) examples of bungalows in the district. The
characteristic rectangular footprint vernacular Prairie School-style bungalows usually have a low-pitched
hipped roof with wide eaves and a full-width front porch under the main roofline. The frame vernacular Prairie
School bungalow ¢. 1915 with dormers at 8891-3 S. 120 East is unusual both in that it is a duplex and does not
have a front porch (Photo #20). Another Prairie School design clad in brick and rock-faced concrete block has a
partial-width front porch on the corner at 8879 S. 120 East (Photo #21). The Ann P. Marriott House (NR
11/6/2000) is a brick Craftsman bungalow with exposed shaped rafter tails, hipped roof and front-facing dormer
with smooth columns supporting its full-width front porch at 8543 S. 100 East (Photo #22).

There are nineteen (19) period revival cottages in the historic district. They are mostly of brick with irregular,
picturesque massing and steep front-facing cross gables with asymmetric facades. Period revival styles are
found in Utah from 1890 to 1940 with the greatest number of residential examples built between the wars, The
classic steep front-facing cross gable of the English Cottage style period cottage emphasizes the front door in
the stucco example at 8931 S. 40 East (Photo #23). The Golden Stephen and Helen M. Baxter House at 8661°

9 Aka 8659.
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S. State is a transitional form between an English Cottage style period cottage and a boxier WWII cottage, built
c. 1939 with three medium-pitch front-facing gables and asymmetric/cross-wing form (Photo #24).

The World War II and post war years of the 1940s and 1950s saw the construction of WWII-era cottages and
early ranch houses in Sandy. There are one hundred twenty (120) houses in the historic district from this era.
Minimal traditional styling common in WWII cottages is loosely based on the earlier period revival form with
its front-facing cross gable and simpler styling elements and was popular in Utah from the late 1930s through
the 1950s. It is the dominant style in the historic district and is seen on seventy-six (76) of the houses. The
prominent front gable and medium roof pitch with close eaves of the type is prominent in the typical brick
WWIl-era cottage at 71 E. 8640 South. Horizontal siding is visible in the gable ends both of the house and the
matching detached garage set to the rear (Photo #25). Asbestos shingles cover the wall surfaces of the minimal
traditional World War II cottage at 520 E. 8800 South (Photo #26).

Ranch/rambler houses became the dominant house type in the nation as well as Sandy in the 1950s and 1960s.
Low pitched roofs, gabled or hipped, predominated, and the broad side of the house faced the street, often with
an attached garage. A side-gabled brick early ranch house displays the fixed picture window and wide chimney
at 8832 S. 40 East (Photo # 27). The side-gabled brick early ranch duplex at 8810 S. 280 East has matching
entrance porches and picture windows (Photo # 28). A hip-roofed example at 465 E. 8800 South has a broad
chimney, brick walls and multiple windows on the fagade (Photo #29). The cross-gabled illustration has a
three-sided bay on the fagade with the cross-gabled section serving as a portico with openwork metal supports.
It is located at 562 E. 8800 South (Photo #30).

Basement or “hope” houses were built with the expectation that when times were better and more money and
time were available, the first floor would be finished and the family would move upstairs. The better times
didn’t always arrive and some examples can still be seen. A street level door sheltered by a shallow gabled

- portico leads down steep stairs to the living area at the vinyl-sided front-gabled example at 70 E. 8840 South
(Photo #31). The ranch house at 425 E. 8680 South was constructed in 1947 as a basement house. It was
completed above ground by a double car garage in 1950 and a ranch house in 1953. The concrete block
basement house at 8585 S. 60 East has a very shallow almost Mansard-style roof and a shed-roofed entrance
porch (Photo #32) set in a wooded lot full of mature trees.

Flat or barely sloping roofs are a characteristic of Modern or Contemporary styles that appeared nationally from
c. 1940-80"" and are found in the Sandy historic district area as well. The flat roofed variant is also called
American International and is seen in two multi-family dwellings in Sandy. The fourplex has picture windows
flanked by metal-sash casements and projecting eaves at 43 E. 8800 South (Photo # 33). A two-story building
with balconies also has projecting eaves at 135 E. 8920 South (Photo #34). The extremely low-pitched roof at
the single-family house at 608 E. 8800 South has overhanging eaves with projecting roof beams and appears to
be a modern incarnation of a Craftsman style (Photo # 35). A side-gabled duplex version of the style is located
at 139-141 E. 8640 South (Photo #36).

"9 Virginia and Lee McAlester. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York: Alfred A. Knopf, 1998, p.482.
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Institutional buildings from this era include two LDS Church structures, a chapel and a recreation hall, as well
as two schools. The city halls that were built in this period have been demolished. Neoclassical styling was
popular in Utah from 1900 to 1925 and Greek and Roman classical motifs are seen in churches and other
institutional buildings throughout Utah. The dark red brick LDS Second Ward Chapel (NR 7/9/1997) at 8630
South 60 East was built in 1921 with a diagonal corner entrance emphasized by four Tuscan cast aggregate
columns. It has the characteristic raised basement and symmetrical fagade characteristic of the style (Photo #
37). The brick bowed-roof Sandy LDS Stake Recreation Hall (NR 11/6/2000) at 295 East 8800 South was built
in the early 1930s in a utilitarian modern style using the walls of an earlier brick gable-roofed structure that
burned (Photo # 38). Although built as a junior high school in 1927, the two-story bow-roofed brick building
at 440 E. 8680 South was also previously used as a city hall and today houses the city Parks and Recreation
offices. The Wells Fargo bank building at 8765 S. State Street was built in 1951 of striated brick and cast
concrete in the mid-century modern style with a flat roof and smooth wall surfaces (Photo 39). The brick Sandy
Elementary School at 8725 South 280 East constructed in 1950 shares the same Modern style elements (Photo
40).

Postwar Growth and Expansion: 1958-2006

Most of the explosive population growth in Sandy has been outside of the historic district area although non-
contributing and out-of-period buildings appear throughout the district. The historic contributing buildings
dominate the streetscape. There are eighty-seven (87) substantially altered historic era buildings and one
hundred thirty-six (136) that have been built since 1957, or outside of the historical period. An example of a
historic non-contributing altered building is the residence at 8631 S. State that has modern replacement
windows, new rock and shingle cladding that disguise the c. 1925 half-timbered bungalow (Photo #41). A
rectangular block two-story brick and siding office building replaced the historic Marriott Hotel at the corner of
Main and 120 East/ 116 E. 8720 South (Photo #42) in 2005. s

Although there are noncontributing buildings in the district, the majority of buildings retain their integrity and
contribute to the historic association and feeling of the area. There are fifty-one buildings within the historic
district that have been previously listed in the National Register of Historic Places.
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Statistical Summary of the Sandy Historic District

Evaluation/Status Contributing (A or B) Non-contributing (C or D)
Primary buildings 54% (266: 317 less 51 prev. listed) 46% (223: 87 altered; 136 out-of-period)

Total 489 resources (540 total buildings less 51 previously listed buildings)

Construction Dates 1870s 1880s 1890s 1900s  1910s 1920s 1930s 1940s 1950s
(contributing primary 1% 1% 8% 14% 16% 18% 4% 14% 24%
buildings only)

Original Use Residential Residential Commercial Other
(contributing primary single-family multi-family
buildings only) 88% 4% 5% 3%
Construction Materials!'  Veneer Brick Wood Concrete Stone
(contributing primary 30% 46% 18% 14% 3%
buildings only)
Architectural Styles Victorian Bungalow/Early 20" Century Period Revival
(contributing primary 18% 23% 6%
buildings only)

Classical WWII/Post War Era Other

4% 33% 16%
Height 1 story 1.5 story 2 story
89% 6% 2%

" Totals add to more than 100% as a building may have more than one building material used.
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Narrative Statement of Significance

The Sandy Historic District, with a, is significant under Criteria A and C for the following contexts: “Boom
Town: Mining and Smelting: c. 1875-1906,” and “Small Town: Agriculture and Local Businesses, 1907-
1957.” The period of significance spans c. 1875-1957; however, a third context, “Postwar Growth and
Expansion: 1958-2006” is also provided, which is outside of the period of significance. The Sandy Historic
District is significant for its association with the MPS contexts: “Mining, Smelting and Small Farm Era, 1871-
1910;” and “Specialized Agriculture, Small Business and Community Development, 1906-46” of the National
Register multiple property submission Historic Resources of Sandy City. 12 Because this was the original section
of Sandy, the contexts of the historic district closely mirror those of the multiple property submission. Under
Criterion A the district is significant because it comprises the original core of the city. The Sandy historic
district comprises the area initially laid out in 1873 as the town of Sandy, known as the “original square mile.”
The history and early development of Sandy City was directly related to economic and social activities that
occurred largely outside of the boundaries of Sandy City. Located twelve miles south of Salt Lake City, Sandy
is at the crossroads of several mining districts, Bingham Canyon to the west, and the Big and Little Cottonwood
canyons to the east. Sandy’s early history and economic development reflected the fortunes of the mining
operations. Agriculture, primarily small farms, also existed in the city and, after the closing of the mines and
the moving or closing of the smelters, agriculture enabled the city to survive into the twentieth century as Sandy
transformed itself from a small mining-dependent town into a large suburban community at the southeast end of
the Salt Lake Valley. Under Criterion C, the buildings of the historic district are significant because they are
the best concentration of historic buildings and depict the historical development of the city. The collection of
buildings provides a good cross section of the architectural styles and types throughout the contextual periods.
The concentration of the variety of resources of the historical plat clearly stands out in this now large city (much
of the current geographic city boundary of Sandy is a result of post-1960 annexation of surrounding land). The
historic district is a contributing resource to the city of Sandy.

Boom Town: Mining and Smelting: c. 1875-1906

There was little settlement or civic activity in the Sandy area before the opening of the mines in the Little
Cottonwood and Bingham Canyons in the late1860s. Railroad access providing transportation for ore from the
mines to smelters and sampling mills was a key to the growth of Sandy in this time period. In 1871 the Utah
Southern Railroad was extended to Sandy providing a direct rail link to Salt Lake City."> Due to its central

2 The dates of the two multiple property contexts overlap because of the nature of the contexts and because they were submitted in
two phases. The district nomination, because it mirrors the contexts of the MPS, will use dates that are similar to the MPS.

13 Daughters of Utah Pioneers of Salt Lake County Company, comp. & pub. , Tales of a Triumphant People; A History of Salt Lake
County, Utah 1847-1900. 1995 Reprint. (Salt Lake City: Stevens & Wallis Press, 1947), 256.
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location, a railroad station with rail connections to the mines of Bingham Canyon on the west and the mines of
Little Cottonwood Canyon on the east was dedicated in 1873. At that time in a survey of the 160-acre Sandy
town site, the town had 60 buildings with a population of 250. The success of the mines in the 1870s and the
allied operations of smelting and sampling provided industrial jobs for many in Sandy. A service economy
grew up to supply the mines as well as providing housing and entertainment for the workers.

There were three major smelters and three sampling mills established in Sandy in the 1870s and 1880s, making
it a regional center for dealing with ore from the mines in the surrounding canyons. The Flagstaff smelter (440
E. 8680 South, demolished) and the Mingo (or Mountain Chief) opened in 1873 (demolished) and the adjoining
Saturn in 1872 (demolished). Hans N. Bjork came to Sandy from Sweden with his two brothers and found a job
in the Mingo Smelter. Later he opened Swede’s Saloon with his friend Ole Nelson at 115 E. Main Street in a
brick one-part block with a false front and diagonal entrance. Hans’ wife, Anna, was also a native Swede and
they built their frame house at 45 E. 8680 South in 1900. By 1921 Bjork was active in civic affairs and serving
on the Sandy City Council.

The Pioneer Sampling Mill (demolished) was located at approx. 8580-8680 South 150 East and built in 1874.
One of its early managers, Arthur J. Cushing, moved to Sandy in 1880 with his wife, Ellen Major. He was a
graduate of Cambridge University, the first mayor of Sandy, and lived at 123 E. Pioneer in a two-story brick
and shingled Victorian Eclectic central block with projecting bay house that he built in 1893. A foreman at the
Pioneer, William Vincent, also lived nearby with his wife, Amorillis, and family at 92 E. Pioneer in a brick
Victorian Eclectic with a prominent corner tower. Vincent also owned a saloon at the corner of State and Main
Streets. The other two Sandy sampling mills were the Wasatch (demolished) and the Scott and Anderson
(demolished) at 198 East 8760 South.

By 1880 the population of Sandy was 488, almost doubling from the 1873 figures but presumably less than the
boom in the mid-1870s. By 1900 it had increased to 1,632. Unlike other communities in Utah at the time that
were predominantly Mormon, the population of Sandy included people of other, non-LDS religions. A frame
Classical style Congregational Church (8831 South 220 East) was built c. 1895 (demolished). The Mormons in
Sandy tended to be connected with small family farms and businesses. The non-Mormons (or gentiles as they
were known locally) were drawn to Sandy to work with aspects of the mining industry. The first community
school was established in 1881 and the first LDS ward in 1882-3.

By the 1890s the mines were beginning to fail and the end of that era changed the character and population of
Sandy. The Mingo smelter closed in 1890 and its equipment was sold to the Germania smelter in Murray, two
miles to the north. The period ended with the moving of the Bingham Canyon smelting operations to Garfield,
near the Great Salt Lake, in 1906. Many of the non-Mormon population of miners and smelter workers left
with the decline in the mining industry.'* As an example of the change in the composition of the town, by 1900

4 Wayne L. Balle, Multiple Property National Register Nomination: Historic Resources of Sandy City, 1990, E2.
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there were only four saloons left of the earlier seventeen establishments. As the mining and smelting
operations failed or moved to other towns, small farms sustained Sandy.

Small Town: Agriculture and Local Businesses: 1907-1957

The Sandy economy diversified from its previous mining economy to that of agriculture and small businesses.
The total population of Sandy changed very little between the censuses of 1900 and 1950, growing only from
1,632 to 2,095. During the 1950s the population swelled, bringing the total to 3,322 in 1960. Sugar beet and
poultry production grew as well as the businesses that supported them. Local businesses turned to construction
with brick, rather than frame, and a number of examples of the early brick commercial buildings are still extant.
The Bateman Agriculture & Development Company built a brick early twentieth century commercial one-part
block in 1910 at 198 East 8760 South (NR 8/8/96) to house its specialty store, on the site of the former Scott
and Anderson Sampling Mill. Iconic photos of the store show George Bateman, paralyzed in a coal wagon
accident in 1911, in his wheelchair outside the store. He was the son of the founder and managed the business,
living with his family behind the store, until his death in 1938.

Many residents combined agriculture and commerce, initially living on agricultural land and later moving to
town. William W. Wilson, mayor of Sandy from 1912 to 1922, moved to Sandy in 1877 and had farm land to
the east. He and his Swedish wife, Anna Ostlund, built their frame (now stucco) house in 1907 at 145 E. 8680
South. He served as vice-president and later president of the Sandy City Bank that was built the same year at the
corner at 212 E. Main Street (NR 7/9/1997). The bank served businesses across the south end of the valley and
showed the role of Sandy as a business center. In 1927 Wilson, after the death of Anna, built a striated brick
Prairie-School bungalow for his second wife, Christine, down the street at 113. E. 8680 South.

The mining industry continued to influence the population of Sandy, though providing jobs in smelters outside
of Sandy for Sandy natives, rather than attracting immigrant workers. George Hansen was born here and
worked as a smelterman and runner. He purchased the modest 1903 frame half-crosswing at 93 E. 8880 South
in 1910 and lived there with his wife, Dora Goff, and family until 1919 when he sold to another smelterman,

- Rowland Hardcastle, also a native of Sandy. Florence Marriott Raddon was born in Sandy in 1882 and married
Lafayette Raddon who worked in the grocery and confectionary business as well as a watchman for the U.S.
Smelting & Refining Company. The Raddons moved a side-gabled one-story frame vernacular Arts & Crafts
bungalow built ¢. 1905 to a site at 110 E. Main in the 1930s, replacing an earlier structure on the site.

Civic improvements helped create a community feeling for the city. The first Salt Lake City streetcar line was
extended from Murray to Sandy in 1907, giving quick access to the capital city. The streetcar track came south
along State Street and traveled east along Main Street. Lighting of public spaces grew as in 1913 Utah Power
and Light installed over 100 streetlights. The Sandy City Post Office was brick one-part-block at 123 East
Main Street built c. 1914. Typical of early twentieth century commercial one-part blocks, it has a stepped
parapet visible on the side walls and recessed sign panels on the fagade
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The growth of the LDS population can be seen in the construction of various church-related buildings for their
use: a tithing office, a ward house and a recreation hall. The Sandy Tithing Office (NR 1/25/1985) at 8845
South 280 East was built in 1907 to store in-kind donations to the church. The first LDS ward house was built
of frame in the 1880s on the corner of 200 South and 400 East — historic addresses (demolished). The second
brick Victorian Gothic structure was completed in 1900 and demolished in 1998. The Neoclassical brick
Second Ward LDS Chapel (NR 7/9/1997) at 8630 South 60 East was designed by Joseph Don Carlos Young,
the official LDS church architect at the time and built in 1921. It became a Baptist church in 1962 and
continues in that use today. The first Sandy LDS Stake Recreation Hall was built of frame in 1907 and
subsequently burned ten years later. A second structure of brick was built on the same site in 1920 and didn’t
burn until the early 1930s. Destruction by the fire wasn’t complete, however, and the still-standing walls were
used to build the current structure (NR 11/6/2000) c. 1933 at 295 East 8800 South.

Post War Growth and Expansion: 1958-2006

The era began with a post-war housing shortage in the Salt Lake valley and is not included within the period of
signficance.”” Sandy City responded to the shortage with growth both in total population and geographic size
of the city. The physical size of the city stayed roughly the same from 1917 to 1960. Beginning in 1960 Sandy
annexed ten thousand acres and platted agricultural and undeveloped land for almost 300 subdivisions. This,
combined with strong internal growth, led to a population increase in the city to 88,418 by year 2000. This
development is outside of the historic core area of Sandy, primarily to the south and east. The Sandy City hall
and associated municipal offices moved south to new city buildings along 10000 South in the mid-1990s.

The Salt Lake Valley light rail system, TRAX, extends along a previous Union Pacific railway corridor that
crosses the Sandy Historic District. The 9000 South Historic Sandy Station and allied Park and Ride lot with
parking for 316 cars are located at 9000 South 165 East. It was built in 1999 and extends from the Delta Center
in Salt Lake City to the Sandy Civic Center at 10000 South.

The Sandy Historic District is an important historic resource because it physically represents the history and
development of the city of Sandy, Utah. It is locally significant as a reflection of the architecture and historic
progression of the city from its early days as a mining boom town through its agricultural era and recent growth
to become of the largest suburban cities in Utah. The residential, commercial and institutional buildings within
the district represent the styles and types popular in the state of Utah between c¢.1875 and 1957.

'5 Bradley, 128.
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Common Label Information:

Sandy Historic District

Sandy, Salt Lake County, Utah
Photographer: Beatrice Lufkin
Date: 2006

Negatives on file at Utah SHPO.
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Archival Photographs (printed using archival paper and ink at the Utah SHPO)

Photo No. 7:
6. Samuel and Eliza Jenkins House, 8658 South 120 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 12:
6. 387 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 15:
6. Sandy Coop Mercantile and Manufacturing Company Block, 8744 S. 150 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 16:
6. LDS Tithing Office, 8844 South 280 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 18:
6. Sandy Post Office, 123-9 East Main Street, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 22:
6. Ann P. Marriott House, 8543 South 100 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 23:
6. 8931 South 40 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 24:
6. Golden Stephen Baxter and Helen M. House, 8661 South State, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 29:
6. 465 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 32:
6. 8855 South 60 East, Sandy, UT
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Photo No. 37:
6. LDS Second Ward Chapel, 8630 South 60 East, Sandy, UT- NR

Supplemental Photographs

Photo No. 1:
6. “Historic Sandy” TRAX stop. 165 East 9000 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 2:
6. Streetscape. Camera facing west on Main Street (8720 South), Sandy, UT

Photo No. 3:
6. Streetscape. Camera facing 8920 South 40 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 4:
6. Streetscape. Camera facing east on 8800 South at 40 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 5:
6. Streetscape. Camera facing south at 60 East on Main Street, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 6:
5. Olsen/Maynard House, 8889 South 90 East, Sandy, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 8:
6. 8814 South 400 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 9:
6. 8879? South 90 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 10:
6. 316 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 11:
6. Louis and Florence Van Dam House, 407 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 13:
6. Southeast corner of 8680 South and 250 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 14:
6. Jensen & Kuhre Lumber and Hardware, 179 East Main (8720 South), Sandy, UT
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Photo No. 17:
6. Anderson’s Meat Market, 115 E. Main (8720 South), Sandy, UT

Photo No. 19:
6. 8888 South 280 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 20:
6. 8891-3 S. 120 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 21:
6. 8879 S. 120 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 25:
6. 71 E. 8640 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 26:
6. 520 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 27:
6. 8832 South 40 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 28:
6. 8810 South 280 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 30:
6. 562 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 31:
6. 70 E. 8840 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 33:
6. 43 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 34:
6. 135 East 8920 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 35:
6. 608 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 36:
6. 139-141 East 8680 South, Sandy, UT
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Photo No. 38:
6. Sandy LDS Stake Recreation Hall, 295 East 8800 South, Sandy, UT- NR

Photo No. 39:
6. 8631 S. State, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 40:
6. Sandy Elementary School, 8725 South 280 East, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 41:
6. 8631 South State, Sandy, UT

Photo No. 42:
6. 116 E. Main (8720 South), Sandy, UT
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